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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
FirstLine Schools, Inc. 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FirstLine Schools, Inc. 
(FirstLine) (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of fmancial position 
as of June 30,2017, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fmancial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements arc free from material misstatement. 

^ ; ti \ L/,. •••-2 LLi 
! AL:'. • A •'•.r- • 

ITHL FAX L'-S-i 6K'Jo 
JAc. MS 3<J201? 

f-rn! 71 •: (;3Qo R.:« ,1. 0 Ii 7 *4 -OciOR 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS^ REPORT 
(CONTINUED) 

To the Board of Directors of 
FirstLine Schools, Inc. 

Auditors' Responsibility, Continued 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors 
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of FirstLine as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
(CONTINUED) 

To the Board of Directors of 
FirstLine Schools, Inc. 

Other Matters 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning an opinion on the financial 
statements as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Reflations (CRF) Part 200. Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Also, the 
accompanying combining schedules and the accompanying Schedule of Compensation, 
Benefits and Other Payments to the Chief Executive Officer are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a 
whole. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
(CONTINUED) 

To tlie Board of Directors of 
EirstLine Schools, Inc. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
April 30,2018 on our consideration of FirstLine's internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and tlie results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering FirstLine's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 
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BRUNO & TERVALON LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

April 30, 2018 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2017 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents (NOTES 1 and 4) $ 918,991 
Cash held for others 166,172 
Grants receivable (NOTE 8) 1,323,618 
Other receivables 733,357 
Prepaid expenses 22,078 
Property and equipment, net (NOTES 1 and 2) 1,202,740 

Total assets _£_4366j^^ 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 1,900,599 
Accrued liabilities 1,060,091 
Funds held on behalf of others 166,172 
Loan payable (NOTE 13) 740,740 

Total liabilities 3,867,602 

Net Assets: 
Unrestricted (171,882) 
Temporally restricted 671,236 

Total net assets 499,354 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 4,366,956 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Unrestricled 
Temporarily 

Restricted Total 
REVENUES 
Local sources: 

Minimum Foundation Program $ 16,231,945 $ S 16,231,945 
Management fee 76,743 - 76,743 
Contributions 1,784.443 1,735,522 3,519,965 
Interest earnings 3,499 - 3,499 
Fundraising activities 3,059 - 3,059 
Other 443,083 - 443,083 

Total local sources 18,542,772 1,735,522 20,278,294 
State sources: 

Minimum Foundation Program 12,591,154 - 12,591,154 
Grants 173,622 - 173,622 

Total state sources 12,764,776 - 12,764,776 

Federal grants 8,751,380 - 8,751,380 

Net assets released from restrictions (NOTE 7) 1,064,286 (1,064,286) -
Total revenues 41,123,214 671,236 41.794,450 

EXPENSES 
Program Services: 

Instruction programs 16,440,521 - 16,440,521 
Support Services: 

Pupil support services 7,885,962 - 7.885.962 
Instructional staff services 1,795,054 - 1,795,054 
School administration 4,055,860 - 4,055,860 
Business services 3,981,667 - 3,981,667 
Operations and maintenance 3,041,710 - 3,041,710 
Student transportation services 3,311,563 - 3,311,563 
Central services 615,092 - 615,092 
Food services operations 3,636,686 - 3,636,686 
Fundraising 53,318 - 53,318 
Depreciation 350,849 - 350,849 

Total expenses 45,168,282 - 45,168,282 

Changes in net assets (4,045,068) 671,236 (3,373,832) 

Net assets, beginning of year 3,873,186 - 3,873,186 

Net assets, end of year $ (171,882) $ 671,236 $ 499,354 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Changes in net assets $ (3,373,832) 
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to net 

cash used in operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 350,849 
Non cash revenue item related to interest free loan (59,260) 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Decrease in prepaid expense 201,407 
Increase in grants receivable (252,588) 
Decrease in other receivables 585,137 
Decrease in other assets 53,697 
Increase in accounts payable 1,129,755 
Decrease in accrued liabilities (478,400) 
Increase in funds held on behalf of others 47,275 

Net cash used in operating activities (1.795,960) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of property and equipment (329,822) 

Net cash used in investing activities (329,822) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVI i lES: 
Proceeds from loan payable 800,000 

Net cash provided by investing activities 800,000 

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1.325,782) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2.410.945 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,085.163 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC, 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY 
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

General 

FirstLine Schools, Inc. (FirstLine) is a nonprofit organization formed in 
1998 to ser\'e as the chartering group for Arthur Ashe Charter School 
(Ashe) formerly known as New Orleans Charter Middle School (NOCMS). 
FirstLine was also granted charters by the Louisiana Board of Elementary 
and Secondary Education (BESE) to operate Samuel J. Green Charter 
School (Green) beginning in the 2005-2006 school year, Phillis Wheatley 
Charter School (Wheatley) beginning in the 2010-2011 school year, Joseph 
S. Clark Charter School (Clark) beginning in the 2011-2012 school year 
and Langston Hughes Charter School (Hughes) beginning in the 2012-2013 
school year. FirstLine will transfer governance for four of their five 
charters (Ashe, Green, Wheatley and Langston Hughes) to Orleans Parish 
School Board on July 1, 2017. The board of directors consists of 
individuals with experience in business and education that have an interest 
in public education. 

The mission of FirstLine is to create and inspire great open admissions 
public schools in New Orleans. FirstLine's schools will prepare students 
for college and fulfilling careers by achieving the following primary 
objectives: 

o Ensuring all of its students are on track to be academically prepared 
for success in a college preparatory high school and college as 
demonstrated by achievement, aspiration, love of learning, and 
confidence; 

o Providing a rich variety of experiences for its students to nurture 
character, health, and active citizenship; and 

o Developing the skillfulness of its staff and building sustainable 
organizations that facilitate its long-term success. 



FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
NO'n':S TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY 
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PGIJCIES. CONTINUED; 

General, Continued 

In the 2016-2017 school year. Green, Ashe, Wheatley, Clark and Hughes 
served the following number of students: 

Green 493 
Ashe 747 
Wheatley 730 
Clark 201 
Hughes 798 

Total 2.969 

Basis of Accountine 

FirstLine's financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis and in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Accordingly, revenue is recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when incurred. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment of FirstLine with a cost of $5,000 or more are 
recorded as assets (capitalized) and are slated at historical costs, if 
purchased, or at fair market value at the date of the gift, if donated. 
Additions, improvements and expenditures that significantly extend the 
useful life of an asset are capitalized. 



FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY 
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. CONTINUED: 

Property and Equipment Continued 

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at their 
estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as unrestricted 
contributions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific 
use. 

Grant Revenue 

Revenues from governmental grants are recognized when allowable 
expenses are made by FirstLine. Funds received for specific purposes but 
not yet expended are recorded as deferred revenue. 

Grants Receivable 

Grants receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect 
from outstanding balances. The financial statements do not include an 
estimate for allowance for doubtful accounts. Management believes that all 
receivables are collectible. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash equivalents include 
all highly liquid instruments purchased with original maturities of three (3) 
months or less. The caption cash and cash equivalents on the Statement of 
Cash Flows includes cash and cash equivalents and cash held for others 
from the Statement of Financial Position. 

Income Taxes 

FirstLine is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code. Therefore, no provision for income taxes is 
made in the accompanying financial statements. 

FirstLine files as a tax-exempt organization. Should that status be 
challenged in the future, FirstLine's 2017, 2016 and 2015 tax years are 
open for examination by the IRS. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY 
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. CONTINUED; 

Financial Statement Presentation 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, FirstLine followed the requirements of 
Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification 
(FASB ASC) Section 958-205, Not-for-Profit Entities, Presentation of 
Financial Statements, in the presentation of its financial statements. 
Under FASB ASC Section 958-205, FirstLine is required to report, as 
applicable, information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted, temporarily restricted 
and permanently restricted net assets. In addition, FirstLine is required to 
present a statement of cash flows. 

A description of the three net asset categories is as follows: 

o Unrestricted net assets include support, revenues, and expenses for 
the general operations of FirstLine. 

o Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions for which 
donor-imposed restrictions have not been met. 

0 Permanently restricted net assets are contributions which are required 
by donor-imposed restriction to be held in perpetuity and only the 
income be made available for program operations in accordance with 
the donor restrictions. Such income is reflected in temporarily 
restricted net assets until utilized for donor-imposed restrictions. 

At June 30, 2017, FirstLine had no permanently restricted net assets. 

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one 
year are recorded as pledges receivable at net realizable value. Unconditional 
promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded 
at the present value of their estimated future cash flows. Conditional 
promises to give are not included as support until the conditions are 
substantially met. Management has determined that the pledges receivable 
are fully collectible; therefore, no allowance for uncollectible accounts is 
considered necessary at June 30, 2017. 

11 



FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY 
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. CONTINUED: 

Contributions 

FirstLine accounts for contributions in accordance with FASB ASC Section 
958-605, Not-for-Profit Entities, Revenue Recognition, in accounting for 
contributions received and contributions made. In accordance with FASB 
ASC Section 958-605, contributions are recorded as unrestricted, 
temporarily restricted or permanently restricted depending on the existence 
and nature of any donor imposed restrictions. 

Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in 
unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the year in which the 
contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are 
reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted assets 
depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. 

Minimum Foundation Program (MFP) 

As Type 5 charter schools, Ashe, Green, Wheatley, Clark and Hughes 
received funding from BESE in an amount for pupils based on estimated 
daily attendance of pupils at the schools. The amount of funding received 
is adjusted during the school year based on the October I®' and February I^* 
student counts and the results of any audits performed. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The cost of providing the various programs and other activities has been 
summarized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities. 
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among program and support 
services in the accompanying statement of activities. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY 
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED: 

Vacation Leave 

Vacation for full-time employees is accrued on a monthly basis. 
Employees receive two (2) weeks annual vacation for the first five (5) years 
of employment. After five (5) years, employees receive three (3) weeks of 
vacation. After eleven (II) years, employees receive four (4) weeks of 
vacation. 

Paid Leave 

Employees earn ten (10) days paid leave per year to be used in the event of 
their own illness, a family illness, bereavement, or personal business. 
Such paid leave may be used for the purpose of visiting doctors, dentist or 
other recognized practitioners. Employees may also use paid leave for the 
above reasons when it relates to immediate family members only. Paid 
leave cannot be carried from one year to the next, and FirstLine will not 
pay the employee for unused leave upon termination. 

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT: 

The following is a summary of property and equipment at June 30, 2017: 

Land 
Building improvements 
Equipment 

Total property and equipment 

Less: accumulated depreciation 

Net property and equipment 

$ 181,485 
2,314,935 
2,200.733 

4,697,153 

(3.494.413) 

$ 1,202,740 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, depreciation expense was $350,849. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 

NOTE 3 - RISK MANAGEMENT: 

FirstLine is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, 
damage to and destruction of property for which FirstLine carries 
commercial liability insurance coverage. 

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the 
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 

NOTE 4 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK: 

FirstLine maintains noninterest-bearing and interest-bearing accounts at 
local banks. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provides 
insurance coverage on deposit accounts for deposit amounts up to $250,000. 
The FDIC insurance coverage limit applies per depositor, per insured 
depository institution for each account ownership category. Total 
uninsured cash balances at June 30, 2017 were $668,992. 

NOTE 5 - CONTINGENCY: 

FirstLine is a recipient of grants from local, state and federal funding 
agencies. The grants are governed by various local, state and federal 
guidelines, regulations, and contractual agreements. 

The administration of the programs and activities funded by these grants are 
under the control and adrninistration of FirstLine and are subject to audit 
and/or review by grantors. Any grant funds found to be not properly spent 
in accordance with the terms, conditions, and regulations of local, state and 
federal agencies may be subject to recapture. 

NOTE 6 - IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS: 

FirstLine received rent-free use of school buildings and certain furniture and 
equipment from the Louisiana Recovery School District for Ashe, Green, 
Clark and Hughes Charter Schools. The estimated values of the buildings, 
furniture and equipment were not readily determinable and no amounts have 
been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. CONTINUED 

NOTE 6 - IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS, CONTINUED: 

FirstLine also receives donated services from a number of unpaid volunteers 
assisting FirstLine with its programs, activities, and operations. An 
estimated value of these services cannot be reasonably determined as a result 
of the variety of services provided by and the varying qualifications of the 
volunteers. Because the criteria for recognition under FASB ASC Section 
958-605-25 have not been satisfied, these donated services are not recorded 
in the financial statements. 

NOTE 7- NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS: 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, net assets were released from donor 
restrictions in the amount of $1,064,286 by incurring expenses satisfying the 
restricted purposes specified by donors for the Edible School Yard Program. 

NOTE 8 " GRANTS RECEIVABLE: 

At June 30,2017, grants receivable consisted of the following sources: 

Federal 
Local 

468,950 
854,668 

$1.323,618 

NOTE 9 - SUBSEOUENT EVENTS: 

FirstLine is required to evaluate events or transactions that may occur after 
the statement of financial position date for potential recognition or disclosure 
in the financial statements. FirstLine performed such an evaluation 
through April 30, 2018, the date which the financial statements were 
available to be issued, and noted no subsequent events or transactions that 
occurred after the statement of financial position date requiring recognition 
or disclosure. 



FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 

NOTE 10- BOARD COMPENSATION: 

The Board of Directors of FirstLine is a volunlar>' board; therefore, no 
compensation was paid to any board member during the year ended June 30, 
2017. 

NOTE 11- CONCENTRATION OF REVENUE SOURCE: 

FirstLine's primary source of funding is through the Minimum Foundation 
Program (MFP) funded by the State Public School Fund. FirstLine receives 
a State allocation and a local allocation per eligible student in attendance at 
the official pupil count date of October U*, each year. MFP revenue accounts 
for 69% of FirstLine's total support for the year ended June 30,2017. 

NOTE 12- OPERATING LEASE: 

In April 2013, FirstLine entered into a lease agreement with the Wheatley 
School Facility Foundation, Inc. for the use of Phyllis Wheatley Elementary 
School facilities and grounds. The lease provides for monthly payments of 
$27,280 for the first two years from the effective date, increasing thereafter 
at 1 1/2% per year. The new lease shall commence on the effective date and 
shall remain effective for seven (7) years, unless terminated in accordance 
with the term of the underlying master lease agreement or charter school 
contract. 

Future minimum commitments under the Wheatley lease agreement are as 
follows. 

Year Amount 

2018 $ 343,597 
2019 348,571 
2020 353,982 
2021 268,463 

Total $1,314,793 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 

NOTE 13- Loan Payable: 

A private foundation has provided an unsecured, interest-free loan totaling 
$800,000 for FirstLines's operations. Principal on the loan is due in full at 
maturity in the 2019 fiscal year. When the loan proceeds were advanced, 
FirstLine recorded contribution revenue and a loan discount using an 8% 
rate. The loan is reported in the statement of financial position net of 
unamortized discount of $59,260 at June 30,2017. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



KIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

SCIIEDl'LE 

Federal Grantor/Program Name 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

U.S. Pcpartmcnt of Education 

Awards from a Pass-ThrouEh Entity 
Passed-Throuah: LA Slate Department of Education 

Federal 
ExMudilures 

lASA Title 1. Part A 84.010 S 1,940.012 
lASA Title 11. Part A 84.367 243,781 
lASA Title III, Part A 84.031 20,994 
IDEA, Pan B 84,027 758,707 
IDEA B- High Cost Services 84.282C 154,409 
IDEA, Preschool 84.173 7,724 
21 St Century 84.287 337.268 
State Personnel Development Grant 84.323 8,585 
Striving Readers Comprehensive Literacy 84.371 264.222 
School Improvement Grants (Section 1003(g) of the F.SSEA) 84.377 1,009.011 

Total LA State Department of Education 4,744,713 

Through: New Orleans Business Alliance 

Perkins 

Total New Orleans Business Alliance 

Passed-Through: New Schools for New Orleans 
Teacher Incentive Fund 
CSP 

Total New Schools for New Orleans 

Total U.S. Department of Education 

t. S Pfffgrlmynt of MymylnpU Security 

Awards from a Pass-Throueh Entity 
Passed-Throueh: Governor's Omce of Security 
and Emergency Preparedness 

FEMA Disaster Relief 

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

84.048 

84.374 
84.282C 

97.036 

11,269 

11.269 

93,068 
22,000 

4.871,050 

24,720 

24.720 

See IndepenJciU Auditors' Report on Supplementary' Information. 
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nRSTLINL SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHHDULH OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

SCHEDULE I 

Federal Grantor/Program Name 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 
Federal 

Expenditures 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Direct Awards 
Farm to School Grant Program 10.575 50.000 

Pnssed-Throueh: LA State Department of Educatiott 
Child Nutrition Cluster: 

Summer Feeding 
National School Lunch Program and Breakfast Program 
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 

Passed-ThrouEh: LA State Department of Education 
Child and Adult Care Food Program 

Total U.S. Department of Agrknltarc 

U.S Departmept of Health and Hnman Services 

Passed-Throueh: Recovery School District 
Temporary Assistance for Needed Families 

U.S Department of Health and Human Services 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

10.559 
10.555, 10.553 

10.582 

10.558 

93.558 

52,712 
2,405,988 

63.150 
2.521.850 

1,084,928 

3,656,778 

198,832 

198,832 

8,751,380 

NOTE: The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant aclivit)' of Firstline 
under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30.2017 and is presented on the accrual 
basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule 
may differ fram amounts in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 

See Independent Auditors' Report on Supplementary Information. 
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FIRSTLINE SCEIOOLS, INC 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL K)S1TI0N 

JUNE 30.2017 

SCHEDULEn 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalcnis 
Cash held for others 
Grants receivable 
Other receivables 
Due from other proerams 
Prepaid expenses 
Property and equipment, net 

Total assets 

LUBILn iES AND NET ASSEIT? 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accnied liabilities 
Funds held on behalf of others 
Loan payable 
Due to other programs 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets: 
Unrestncied 
Temporaily restricted 

Total net assets 

Tol^ liabilities and net assets 

Edible 
Scbool Yard 

FiratLinc 
Network 
Activity 

Langston Hughes 
Arthur Ashe SamuelJ. Green Phillis Whcalley Joseph S. Clark Academy 

CharterSchool Charter .School CharterSchool Charter School CharterSchool Climlnatloas 

563.478 

907,335 

1.472.603 36J7g 109.010 

2^ 

936265 

776 3.504.407 S (16.639.053) ^ 

Total 

S 4.445 S 787,906 $ 43.420 S 1.974 S 934 S 2.003 S 78209 s - s 918.991 
- - 49,969 15.059 42210 7.812 51,022 . 166.172 

600,000 32.571 30,874 122,263 212,842 172.199 152,869 . 1223.618 
2,177 665,052 8274 24,409 13,200 1,812 18,333 . 733257 

300244 4,137212 3.629,139 2.112,696 2,415,918 946.406 3.097238 (16.639,053) 
369 12.041 288 2242 4.392 2.079 567 - 22,078 
• 204282 413,100 84,033 393.209 1,747 106,069 - 1202.740 

I 907,335 $ 5.839.464 S 4.175.164 $ 2262.776 $ 3.082.805 S 1,134.058 $ 3204,407 $ (16,639.053) S 4.366.956 

s s 335,675 5 443,681 I 261,794 S 344,402 S 145,185 S 369,862 s s 1,900.599 
16.658 13,181 241,925 162,973 249,104 124,435 251,815 . 1,060,091 

. . 49,969 15,059 42210 7.812 51,022 . 166.172 

. 740.740 . . . . . . 740,740 
327.199 7298.448 1,966.984 1.886272 2.337.970 926.437 1.895.443 (ie,639.053> . 

343.857 8.388.044 2,702259 2,326,398 2.973.786 1,203.869 2268,142 (16,639,053) 3,867.602 

(107.758) (2248280) 1,472.605 36278 109,019 (69.811) 936265 (171,882) 
671236 - - - - - - • 671236 

499.354 

J266j9^ 

See Independent Auditors' Report on Supplementary Infonnation. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2017 

SCHEDULE III 

FintLin* UngBloa Hughes 
Edible Network Arthur Ashe Sanud J. Green Phlllis Wheatley ioaeph S. Cbrk Academy 

School Yard Activity Charter School Charier School Charter School Charter School Charter School EllminatioH Toul 
REVENUES 

Local sources; 

Mitiimun) Foundation Program $ s $ 4.001,380 I 2.630.663 5 4348.756 $ 1.183.500 S 4,167,646 $ 8 16,231,945 
Administrative fee revenue 2,173,315 - - - . . (2,173315) 
Management Iw . 76,743 - . . . . . 76,743 
Cofttribuiions-unresinctcd . 1,273,258 52.179 4,899 250,689 203.135 283 - 1,784.443 
Coothbutions-tcmponrily restricted 1,735,522 - - . . . - . 1.735,522 
Interest earnings 43 1.809 154 293 1300 - . - 3.499 
Fundraising activities 3.059 - - . - - . - 3.059 
Other 2,496 19,391 78,528 73.732 93370 51.017 124.649 - 443,083 

Ttrtal local sources I.74I.120 3,544.516 4.132341 2.709,587 4,593,915 1.437,652 4,292.578 (2,173315) 20378394 
State sources: 
Minimum Foundation Program . - 3.056.803 2,181376 2,850,686 1349,111 3353,178 - 12.591,154 
Grants - - 1399 1,045 85,354 879 84.943 . 173.622 

Toul state sources • . 3.058302 2,182.421 2.936.040 1349,990 3338,123 . 12.764,776 

Federal grants 50.000 304.892 1.754,852 1.129.313 1,744,786 1,647.975 2,119,562 8.751.380 
Total rcventies 1.791,120 3.849,408 8,945395 6.021.321 9374,741 4335,617 9.750.263 (2,173315) 41.794.450 

EXPENSES 

Program Services. 

Instruction programs - 302,672 3,866382 2,792335 3,791,496 1.472,682 4315,154 - 16.440321 

Support Services: 

Pupil support services . 482.886 1.580362 1366.858 1,698387 1.182.705 1374364 - 7.885.962 

Insiruciionai staff services 1,004,073 660,977 130.004 - - - - - 1.795.054 

School adrrunisiration - 15,916 663,913 734,961 932379 819.459 889.032 - 4,055.860 

Business services 4,541 3,774,453 62372 36,052 34.403 26.707 43,139 - 3,981.667 

Operations and maintenance 4,502 339,027 491,486 334,511 842,835 358354 670,795 - 3,041,710 

Student transportation services . - 703,706 625308 722.146 459,344 801,159 - 3311363 

Central servsccs - 615,092 847.732 197.723 563,930 - 563.930 (2,173315) 615,092 

Food services operations - 18.182 1,04^950 447357 928345 149.821 1,049.931 - 3,636.686 

Fundraising 51,170 2,148 . . - - - - 533I8 

Depreciation . 6.458 138.590 29.733 88.066 22.490 65312 - 350.849 

Total expenses 1.064^86 6,217.811 9.527397 6.464,838 9.602,087 4.491,762 9.973316 (2.173315) 45.168382 

Changes in net assets 726,834 (2368,403) (582302) (443,517) (327346) (156.145) (222,953) - (3.373.832) 

Net assets, beginning of year (163,356) (180.177) 2.054,907 479,895 436365 86.334 1.159318 3.873,186 

Net assets, end of year S 563.478 5 (2,548,580) S 1.472.605 S 36378 S 109.019 S (69,811) S 936365 S s 499,354 

Sec Independent Auditors' Report on Supplementary Information. 
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FIRSTLINK SCHOOLS, INC. 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

SCHEDULE IV 

FirslLiac Langston Hughes 
Edible Network Arthur Ashe Samuel J. Green Phillis Wheatley Joseph S. Clark Academy 

School Yard Activity Charter School Charter School Charter School Charter School Charter School Total 
CASH 1 LOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVMTES: 
Changes in net assets S 726,834 S (2.368.403) $ (582,302) S (443,517) S (327,346) S (156,145) S (???,953) $ (3,373,832) 
Adjusimcnis to reconcile changes in net assets to net cash 
provided by (used in) operating activities; 
Depreciation expense - 6.458 138.590 29,733 88,066 22,490 65,512 350,849 
Non cash revenue item related to intercsi free loan (59.260) (59.260) 

Changes in assets and liBbilities; 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense (369) 55,250 28.999 34,915 50.847 3,441 28,324 201,407 
(Increase) decrease in grants receivable (600.000) 145,380 (30.874) (6,598) 99,662 6,539 133,303 (252,588) 
(Increase) decrease in other receivables 36,004 72,324 350,397 3,757 142,800 0.812) 08.333) 585,137 
Increase in due from other programs (300,344) (3,792,873) (1,822,548) (1,617.849) (2,339,888) (806,707) (1.945,884) (12,626.093) 
Decrease in other assets . 4,854 - 24,060 9,644 - 15,139 53,697 
Increase in accounts pay^le . 300,897 159.422 180,105 138,886 91,851 258.594 1,129,755 
Decrease in accrued liabilities (3.792) (109,493) (38,673) (68,514) (75,178) (87,092) (95,658) (478,400) 
(Decrease) increase in funds held on behalf of otheis - (51,298) 37,366 745 34,094 - 26.368 47,275 
Increase in due to other programs 131,807 3.629,926 1,966,984 1.886,572 2.264,954 926,437 1.819,413 12,626.093 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (9,860) (2,166,238) 207,361 23.409 86,541 (998) 63,825 (1,795.960) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of property and ei|uipmeni . (28,981) (171.755) (33.902) (58.617) 0.747) (34,820) (329.822) 

Net cash used m investing activities . (28,981) 071.755) (33.902) (58.617) 0.747) (34,820) (329,822) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Proceeds from loan payable 800,000 - - - - - 800.000 

Net cash provided by investing nciiviiies _ 800,000 _ . . - 800,000 

Increase (decrease) m cash and cash equivalents (9,860) (1,395,219) 35,606 (10,493) 27.924 (2,745) 29,005 (1,325.782) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 14.305 2,183,125 57,783 27,526 15.320 12.560 100,326 2,410,945 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 4,445 S 787,906 S 93,389 S 17.033 S 43.244 S 9.815 S 129,33! J 1.085,!63 

See Independent Auditors' Report on Supplementary Infomiation. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. SCHEDULE V 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND 

OTHER PAYMENTS TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Chief Executive Officer Name: Mr. Jay Altman 

Purpose Amount 

Salary $156,100 
Benefits - insurance 6,765 
Benefits - retirement 9,366 
Car allowance -0-
Vehicle provided by government -0-
Per diem -0-
Reimbursements 918 
Travel 1,418 
Registration fees -0-
Conference travel -0-
Continuing professional education fees -0-
License fees -0-
Unvouchered expenses -0-
Special meals -0-

See Independent Auditors' Report on Supplementary Information. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors of 
FirstLine Schools, Inc. 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government A-uditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of FirstLine Schools, Inc. (FirstLine) (a nonprofit organization), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the related 
statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 30, 2018, 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
FirstLine's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of FirstLine's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of FirstLine's internal control. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
(CONTINUED) 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, Continued 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given 
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal 
control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 
2017-001 to 2017-005 that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether FirstLine's financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 
(CONTINUED) 

Response to Findings 

FirstLine's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in a separate letter 
identified as the audit's corrective action plan, dated April 30,2018. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of FirstLine's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering FirstLine's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However, under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public 
document. 

L 
iB/uw ^ 
BRUNO & TERVALON LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

April 30. 2018 

JBruno & Tervalon UP 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REOUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Directors of 
FirstLine Schools, Inc. 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the compliance of FirstLine Schools, Inc. (FirstLine) with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of FirstLine's major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2017. FirstLine's major federal programs are identified in the Summary of 
Auditors' Results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs. 

Management's Responsibility manageineni s icesponsioiiiiy 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs. 

JBruno & Tervalon LIP 
l^^Certified Public Accountants 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REOUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
(CONTINUED) 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of FirstLine's major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about FirstLine's compliance with those requirements and performing 
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for 
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
FirstLine's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, FirstLine complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REOUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
(CONTINUED) 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of FirstLine is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered FirstLine's internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance 
for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of FirstLine's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency 
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORrON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REOUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
(CONTINUED) 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance, Continued 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based 
on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for 
any other purpose. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

BRUNO & TERVALON LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

April 30, 2018 

JBruno& Tervalon ui 
WWClertified Public Accountants 



FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS* RESULTS 

A. Type of report issued on the financial statements: Unmodified. 

B. Did the audit disclose any material weaknesses in internal control over financial 
reporting? No. 

C. Did the audit disclose any significant deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes. 

D. Did the audit disclose any non-compliance which is material to the financial 
statements? No. 

E. Did the audit disclose any material weaknesses in internal control over major 
federal programs? No. 

F. Did the audit disclose any significant deficiencies in internal control over major 
programs that are not considered to be material weaknesses? None Reported. 

G. Type of report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified. 

H. Did the audit disclose any audit findings required to be reported in accordance 
with Section 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance? 

I. Was a management letter issued? No. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED 

FOR IHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS. CONTINUED 

J. Major programs: 
U.S. Department of Education: 

School Improvement Grants - CFDA No. 84.377 

U. S. Department of Agriculture: 
Child and Adult Care Food Program - CFDA No. 10.558 

U. S. Department of Health and Human 
Services: 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families - CFDA No. 93.558 

K. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type R programs: 
$750,000. 

L. Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee: Yes. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Section II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

Audit Finding Reference Number 

2017-001 Financial Close-Out and Reporting Process/Submission of Audit 
Report 

Finding Classification 

Significant deficiency 

Finding Type 

Internal controls 

Finding Title 

Financial close-out and reporting process/submission of audit report 

Resolution (Resolved/Not Resolved/Partially Resolved) 

Not resolved 

Number of Years Finding Reported 

One(l)-2017 

Financial Impact of Finding 

Less than Si50,000 

Resolution is With or Without Cause 

With cause 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Section II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS. CONTINUED 

2017-001 Financial Close-Out and Reporting Process/Submission of Audit 
Report, Continued 

Criteria 

Management of FirstLine is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining 
proper and relevant control processes to ensure accuracy and completeness in financial 
reporting, preparation and fair presentations of disclosures. 

LSA-RS 24:513 (A)(5)(I) requires audit reports to be completed and submitted to the 
State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor within six (6) months after year end, unless the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor Audit Advisory Council approves an extension request of 
time for submission. 

Condition 

We noted during our audit that FirstLine's 2017 fiscal year-end financial close-out and 
reporting process was not timely completed until March 2018. From the period of 
February 2017 through November 2017, FirstLine's accounting department was 
operating without a Chief Financial Officer (CFG) to provide the accounting department 
with oversight and management for financial reporting, financial planning, record­
keeping and financial risks. Therefore, FirstLine's June 30, 2017 financial statements 
were prepared and finalized nearly nine (9) months after the fiscal year-end. In 
December 2017, a new CFG was hired. 

In addition, the June 30, 2017 audited financial statements were not submitted to the 
Legislative Auditor by the statutory due date of December 31, 2017. 

Cause 

This condition was caused by 1) sudden turnover of key financial personnel during the 
period of the financial close-out and reporting process, 2) tlie lack of a transitional period 
for the new accounting personnel to familiarize themselves with FirstLine's financial 
operations, and 3) needed updated written financial close-out and reporting policies and 
procedures. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Section II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS. CONTINUED 

2017-001 Financial Close-Out and Reporting Process/Submission of Audit 
Report, 
Continued 

Effect 

Financial information was not timely and accurately captured for the preparation of the 
June 30, 2017 financial statements and commimicated to management and the Board of 
Directors for their use. Also, failure to timely submit the required audit report to the 
Legislative Auditor after the six (6) months' timeframe for any reason other than for a 
natural disaster is a violation of the State audit completion and submission law, and 
therefore subject to penalty. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that management establish a well-defined financial close-out and 
reporting process. The process and its key attributes (e.g. overall timing, format and 
frequency of analyses) should be formally documented, approved and reviewed on a 
regular basis. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC, 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Section II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS. CONTINUED 

2017-002 Dociiniented Reviews and Approvals 

Finding Classification 

Significant deficiency 

Finding Type 

Internal controls 

Finding Title 

Documented reviews and approvals 

Resolution (Resolved/Not Resolved/Partially Resolved) 

Not resolved 

Number of Years Finding Reported 

One(l)-2017 

Financial Impact of Finding 

Less than $150,000 

Resolution is With or Without Cause 

With cause 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED 

FOR 'ITIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Section II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS. CONTINUED 

2017-002 Documented Reviews and Approvals, Continued 

Criteria 

Management of FirstLiue is responsible for maintaining a system of recordkeeping that 
will ensure that all documentation is complete, accurate and properly retained for the 
required time period. 

Condition 

We noted during our audit that supervisory^ reviews and approvals were not documented 
for the following activities: 

• employee time review process; 
• bank statement review process; 
• bank reconciliation review process; and 
• credit card charges of authorized cardholders review process. 

The noted deficiencies were not significant enough to warrant any proposed audit 
adjustments. 

Cause 

FirstLine lacks written policies and procedures regarding documentation of certain 
review and approval processes. 

Effect 

Possible material misstatements or errors due to fi*aud may occur intentionally or 
unintentionally without timely detections. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CON FINUED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Section II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS, CONTINUED 

2017-002 Documented Reviews and Annrovals, Continued 

Recommendation 

We recommend that FirstLine establish internal controls that require documented 
supervisory reviews and approvals of employees' time reporting, bank reconciliations, 
bank statements prior to bank reconciliations and credit card statements and related 
supporting documentation of credit card charges on an ongoing basis. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2017 

Section II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS. CONTINUED 

2017-003 Requisition and/or Purchase Order System 

Finding Classification 

Significant deficiency 

Finding Type 

Accounting records documentation 

Finding Title 

Requisition and/or purchase order system 

Resolution (Resolved/Not Resolved/Partially Resolved) 

Not resolved 

Number of Years Finding Reported 

One(l)-2017 

Financial Impact of Finding 

Less than $150,000 

Resolution is With or Without Cause 

With cause 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

Section II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS, CONTINUED 

2017-003 Requisition and/or Purchase Order System, Continued 

Criteria 

Appropriate records should be in place to ensure that all payments disbursed are properly 
authorized, approved, processed and related supports are properly recorded and kept 
according to the established policies and procedures. 

Condition 

We noted twelve (12) of twenty-five (25) tested payments for purchases were processed 
without 1) an approved requisition and/or purchase order, 2) a receiving report showing 
receipt of goods purchased, or electronic equivalent; and 3) an approved invoice. 

Cause 

FirstLiiie failed to follow established policies and procedures. 

Effect 

Potential fraudulent activities could occur and not be detected on a timely basis. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that FirstLine revisit its current requisition and/or purchase order system 
to ensure all required policies and procedures are strictly followed as established. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Section II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS, CONTINUED 

2017-004 Unrestricted Net Asset Deficit - Network Activity 

Finding Classification 

Significant deficiency 

Finding Type 

Other 

Finding Title 

Unrestricted Net Asset Deficit - Network Activity 

Resolution (Resolved/Not Resolved/Partially Resolved) 

Not resolved 

Number of Years Finding Reported 

One(l)-2017 

Financial Impact of Finding 

Greater than $150,000 

Resolution is With or Without Cause 

With cause 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OP FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Section II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS. CONTINUED 

2017-004 Unrestricted Net Asset Deficit - Network Activity, Continued 

Criteria 

Special reporting is required by the State of Louisiana for a quasi-public organization 
reporting an unrestricted net asset deficit that is greater than accumulated depreciation 
plus 5 percent of reported revenue to address the deficit. 

Condition 

As of June 30, 2017, Firstline's Network Activity program reported a significant 
unrestricted net asset deficit of $2,548,580. 

Cause 

In 2017, the unrestricted Network Activity program absorbed a larger portion of the other 
programs' deficits by reducing the administrative fee charged to the other programs for 
the current year. The separation of the Edible School Yard program from the unrestricted 
Network Activity program is another contributing factor. Subsequent to year end and 
moving forward. Edible School Yard program will be combined with the unrestricted 
FirstLine's Network Activity program, thereby reducing the negative deficit. Lastly, the 
loss of key financial personnel in 2017 created a void in program budget monitoring and 
control, which flirther impacted the net asset deficit. 

Effect 

Continued deficit in net assets could result in the ability of Firstline to continue as a 
viable entity. 

Recommendation 

Although the combined unrestricted net assets of Firstline is not in a deficit position and 
no special reporting is required by the State of Louisiana for significant net asset deficits, 
we recommend that Firstline develop a written plan to eliminate the significant net asset 
deficit of the Network Activity program within the next five (5) years to improve the 
combined financial position of Firstline. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Section II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS, CONTINUED 

2017-005 Credit Card Charges 

Finding Classification 

Significant deficiency 

Finding Type 

Credit card usage/travel 

Finding Title 

Credit card charges 

Resolution (Resolved/Not Resolved/Partially Resolved) 

Not resolved 

Number of Years Finding Reported 

2017 

Financial Impact of Finding 

Greater than $150,000 

Resolution is With or Without Cause 

With cause 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Section 11 - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS, CONTINUED 

2017-005 Credit Card Charges, Continued 

Criteria 

Records should be maintained for all charges in a manner that permits tlie verification of 
balances and support with amounts reported in accordance with the established policies 
and procedures. 

Condition 

Based on our tests of credit card charges, we noted the following: 

• one hundred forty-three (143) of the eight hundred forty-six (846) charges tested 
were not supported by an itemized receipt; 

• one hundred sixty-three (163) of the eight hundred forty-six (846) charges tested 
did not have documentation of the business purpose; and 

• two hundred fifty-three (253) of the eight hundred forty-six (846) charges tested 
did not have other documentation required by FirstLine's policies (i.e., purchase 
order, written pre-authorization). 

Cause 

FirstLine did not adhere to credit card policies and procedures. 

Effect 

Unauthorized/iionbusiness credit card charges may occur with weak internal controls 
over credit card charges without timely detections. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that FirstLine intensify efforts to ensure that credit card charges are 
always supported with source documentation (i.e., invoice or itemized receipt) and that 
each credit card charge is documented with the business purpose. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

SECTION I - INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE 
MATERIAL TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

No matters reported. 

SECTION II - INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE 
MATERIAL TO FEDERAL AWARDS 

No matters reported. 

SECTION HI - MANAGEMENT LETTER 

No matters reported. 
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& FIRSTLINE^/^SCHOOLS 
EDUCATION FOR LIFE 

April 30, 2018 
Bruno & Tervalon LLP, CPA's 
4298 Elysian Fields Ave 
New Orleans, LA 70122 

Dear Sirs, 

The following is a cx>rrective action plan addressing each finding included in the Firsttine 
Schooi's, Inc. Financial and Compliance and Independent Auditors report for the fiscal year 
ended June 30. 2017. 

Corrective Action Plan 
In Response to Findings Relating to the Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Section II- Financial Statement Findings 

Finding 17-001 Financial Close and Reporting Process/Submission of Audit Report 

Agency's Response: 
Management, along with the Audit and Finance Committees, will review and appropriately 
revise the current financial reporting procedures to ensure timely completion of audit 
engagements. Firstline Schools (FLS) will note that there were extenuating circumstances 
that delayed the completion of the report, including loss of key personnel with the 
vacancies of the Director of Finance and Grants Manager of the agency. These vacancies 
resulted In additional time scheduled for the preparation of audit work and getting the report 
completed. Management has since hired essential staff and taken corrective action by 
implementing procedures to ensure accuracy and reliability of financial statements through 
the monthly close and reconciliation process. FLS will create closing and audit timelines 
that will assist with the timely completion of future audit reports. 

Finding 17-002 Documented Reviews and Approvals 

Agency's Response: 
FLS will ensure the supervisory review and approval of time and attendance records, bank 
statements and bank reconciliations as well as credit card statement review. Management 
is currently reviewing all documents, but will correct the process by which these approvals 
are documented. Management and the Board of Directors will implement internal control 
policies and procedures to address the review and approval of these activities. 

FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS - EDUCATION FOR LIFE 
300 N. Broad Street Suite 207, New Orleans, LA 70119 | (504) 267-9038 1 www.firstlineschools.org 



PiRSrUNE A/^SCHOOLS 
EDUCATION FOR UFE 

Finding 2017-003 Requisition and/or Purchase Order System 

Agenoy'g Rgsponso: 

FLS will ensure that all purchases are approved prior to processing requisitions and ensure 
that those purchases are properly received in the purchasing system or with a valid 
signature acknowledging receipt. Currently, all purchases are approved: however 
management will ensure that the purchase order system Is used in all applicable instances. 

Finding 2017-004- Unrestricted Net Asset Deficit- Network Activity 

Agency's Response 

Management has expanded capacity in the accounting and finance department to ensure 
effective fiscal oversight, resulting in enhanced budget control measures and timely 
financial reporting to Management and the Board of Directors. FLS has also modified its 
budget process to include more comprehensive and conservative budget projections to 
align with shifts in state and local funding and implementation of cost control measures to 
reduce overall spending. Staff will work with the Board of Directors to implement an 
appropriate financial sustainability plan that will result in the rebuilding of net assets across 
the Network activity program and the improvement of the overall financial position of 
FirstLine Schools. 

Finding 2017-005 Requisition Credit Card Charges 

Aaencv^s Response: 

Credit Card purchases are reviewed for business purpose and backup documentation during 
the monthly reconciliation process. Management and the Board of Directors will revisit the 
current credit card policy and procedure, make necessary changes needed to tighten 
Internal controls in this area and ensure full implementation of the revised policy. 

If you have any questions concerning this response, please contact Gizelle Johnson-
Banks. Chief Financial Officer at (504) 267-9038. 

Sincerely, 

Jay Altman 
CEO 

FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS - EDUCATION FOR LIFE 
300 N. Broad Street Suite 207, New Orleans, LA 70119 | (504) 267-9038 | www.firstlineschools.org 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Boai d of Directors 
FlrstLine Schools, Inc. 

We have performed the procedures included in the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide and 
enumerated below, which were agreed to by the management of FirstLine Schools, Inc. (FirstLiiie) 
and the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, solely to assist users in evaluating management's 
assertions about the accompanying performance and statistical data and to detennine whether the 
specified schedules are free of obvious errors and omissions as provided by the Board of Elementary 
and Secondary Education (BESE). Management of FirstLine is responsible for its perfonnance and 
statistical data. Tliis agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed in accordance with 
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable 
standards of Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the 
responsibility of the specified users of the report. Consequently, we make no representation 
regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described on pages 2 to 6 either for the purpose for which 
this report has been requested or for any otlier purpose. 

We were not engaged to, and did not, perform an examination, tlie objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion on management's assertions. Accordingly, we do not express such aii 
opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention 
that would have been reported to you. 

This report is intended solely for the use of management of FirstLine, the Louisiana Department of 
Education, the Louisiana Recovery School District, the Louisiana Legislature, and the Legislative 
Auditor, State of Louisiana, and should not be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures 
and taken responsibility for the sufficiency of the procedures for their purposes. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

/ 

BRUNO & TERVALON LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

April 30, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

PROCEDURES AND HNDINGS 

Our procedures and findings relate to the accompanying schedules of supplemental information and 
are as follows: 

General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures 
and Certain Local Revenue Sources (SCHEDULE 1) 

1. We selected a random sample of 25 transactions and reviewed supporting documentation 
to determine if the sampled expenditures/revenues are classified correctly and are reported 
in the proper amounts for each of the following reported on the schedule: 

• Total General Fund Instructional Expenditures, 
• Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures, 
• Total Local Taxation Revenue, 
• Total Local Earnings on Investment in Real Property, 
• Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes, 
• Nonpublic Textbook Revenue, and 
• Nonpublic Transportation Revenue. 

FirstLine did not provide us with supporting documentation for two (2) of the twenty-five 
(25) expenditures tested. Hierefore, we were not able to determine if the expenditures were 
properly classified correctly and reported for the proper amounts on the schedule. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the above finding is described in a separate letter identified 
as the BESE Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for the year ended 
June 30,2017. 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

PROCEDURES AND FINDINGS. CONTINUED 

Education Levels of Public School Staff (SCHEDULE 2) 

2. We reconciled the total number of full-time classroom teachers per the schedule 
"Experience of Public Principals, Assistant Principals, and Full Time Classroom Teachers" 
(SCHEDULE 4) to the combined total number of full-time classroom teachers per this 
schedule and to FirstLine's supporting payroll records as of October 1,2016. 

No differences noted. 

3. We reconciled the combined total of principals and assistant principals per the schedule 
"Experience of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers" (SCHEDULE 4) to 
the combined total of principals and assistant principals per this schedule. 

No differences noted. 

4. We obtained a list of full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by classification 
as of October 1,2016 and as reported on the schedule. We traced a random sample of 25 
teachers to the indi\'idual's personnel file and determined if the individuaTs education level 
was properly classified on the schedule. 

Number and Type of Public Schools (SCHEDULE 3) 

5. We obtained a list of schools by type as reported on the schedule. We compared the list 
to the schools and grade levels as reported on the Title 1 Grants to Local Educational 
Agencies (CFDA 84.010) application and/or the National School Lunch Program (CFDA 
10.555) application. 

No differences noted. 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

PROCEDURES AND FINDINGS, CONTINUED 

Experience of Public Principals, Assistant Principals, and Full-time Classroom Teachers 
(SCHEDULE 4) 

6. We obtained a list of full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by classification 
as of October 1,2016 and as reported on the schedule and traced the same sample used in 
procedure 4 to the individual's personnel file and determined if the individual's experience 
was properly classified on the schedule. 

We noted that four (4) of tiie twenty-five (25) full-time teachers tested tlie experience was 
improperly classified on the schedule. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the above finding is described in a separate letter identified 
as the BESE Agreed-Upon Procedui es Management's Response for the year ended 
June 30,2017. 

Public School Staff Data: Average Salaries (SCHEDULE 5} 

1. We obtained a list of all classroom teachers including their base salary, extra 
compensation, and ROTC or rehired retiree status as well as full-time equivalent as 
reported on the schedule and traced a random sample of 25 teachers to the individual's 
personnel file and determined if the individual's salary, extra compensation, and full-time 
equivalents were properly included on the schedule. 

No differences noted. 

8. We recalculated the average salaries and full-time equivalents reported in the schedule. 

No differences noted. 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

PROCEDURES AND HNDINGS. CONTINUED 

Class Size Characteristics (SCHEDULE 6) 

9. We obtained a list of classes by school, school type and class size as reported on the 
schedule. We then traced a random sample of 10 classes to the October 1,2016 roll books 
for those classes and determined if the class was properly classified on the schedule. 

FirstLine did not provide us with roll books for three (3) of tlie ten (10) tested classes. 
Therefore, we could not trace these classes to the October 1, 2016 roll books and also we 
could not determine if the classes were properly classified on the schedule. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the above finding is described in a separate letter identified 
as the BESE Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for the year ended 
June 30,2017. 

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) (SCHEDULE 7) 

10. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as 
reported by the testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by FirstLine. 

No differences noted. 

Graduation Exit Exam (GEE) (SCHEDULE 8) 

11. Tliis schedule is not applicable because the Graduate Exit Exam is no longer administered. 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

PROCEDURES AND FINDINGS. CONTINUED 

HEAP Tests (SCHEDULE 9) 

12. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as 
reported by the testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by FirstLine. 

No differences noted. 



FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 
SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY STATE LAW (R.S, 24:514 -

PERFORMANCE AND STATISTICAL DATA) 

SCHEDULE 1 General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain 
Local Revenue Sources 

This schedule includes general fund instructional and equipment 
expenditures. It also contains local taxation revenue, earnings on 
investments, revenue in lieu of taxes, and nonpublic textbook and 
transportation revenue. This data is used either in the Minimum, 
Foundation Program (MFP) fonnula or is presented annually in the MFP 
70% Expenditure Requirement Report. 

SCHEDULE 2 Education Levels of Public School Staff 

Tliis schedule includes the certificated and uncertificated number and 
percentage of full-time classroom teachers and the number and percentage 
of principals and assistant principals with less than a Bachelor's; Master's; 
Master's +30; Specialist in Education; and Ph.D. or Ed.D. degrees. This 
data is currently reported to the Legislature in the Annual Financial and 
Statistical Report (AFSR). 

SCHEDULE 3 Number and Type of Public Schools 

Tliis schedule includes tlie number of elementary, middle/junior high, 
secondary and combination schools in operation during the fiscal year. 
This data is currently reported to the Legislature in the Annual Financial 
and Statistical Report (AFSR). 

SCHEDULE 4 Experience of Public Principals, Assistant Principals, and Full-time 
Classroom Teachers 

This schedule includes the number of years of experience in teaching for 
assistant principals, principals, and full-time classroom teachers. This data 
is currently reported to the Legislature in the Annual Financial and 
Statistical Report (AFSR). 



FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, LNC. 
SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY STATE LAW (R.S. 24:514 -

PERFORMANCE AND STATISTICAL DATA), CONTINUED 

SCHEDULE 5 Public School Staff Data: Average Salaries 

This schedule includes average classroom teachers salary using full-time 
equivalents, including and excluding ROTC and rehired retiree teachers. 
Tliis data is currently reported to tlie Legislature in the Annual Financial 
and Statistical Report (AFSR). 

SCHEDULE 6 Class Size Characteristics 

This schedule includes the percent and number of classes with student 
enrollment in tlie following ranges: 1-20; 21-26,27-33, and 34+students. 
This data is currently reported to the Legislature in the Annual School 
Report (ASR). 

SCHEDULE? Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) 

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes 
summary scores by school for grades 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 in each category 
tested. Scores are reported as Advanced, Mastery, Basic, Approaching 
Basic, and Unsatisfactory. This schedule includes three years of data. 

SCHEDULE 8 - The Graduation Exit Exam (GEE) 

This schedule is not applicable because the Graduate Exit Exam is no 
longer administered. 

SCHEDULE 9 /LEAP Tests 

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes 
school summary scores for grades 3,4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 in each district. The 
summary score reported is the National Percentile Rank showing relative 
position or rank as compared to a large, representative sample of students 
in the same grade from the entire nation. This schedule includes three years 
of data. 



FJRSTLINE: SCHOOLS, INC. Schedule I 

General Fund Injitructional and Support Expenditures 
and Certain Local Rev enue Sources 

For the Year Ended June 30,2017 

Geperal Fund Instructional and Eoulonient Evpendlturcs 
General Fund Instructional Expenditures: 
Teacher and Student hueraction Activities: 

ClassrcN^m Teacher Salaries 
Other Instmclional Staff Acliviiics 
Employee Benefits 
PuTthased Professional and Technical Services 
Instructional Materials and Supplies 
Instructional Equipment 

Total Teacher and Student Interaction Activities 

11,067,794 
474,799 

2J28I,644 
1,670.987 

471.718 
473,579 

16,440421 

Other Instructional Activnties 

Pupil Support Activities 
Less: Equipment for Pupil Support Activities 

Net Pupil Support Activities 

Instructional Staff Services 
Le^: Equipment for instructional Staff Services 

Net Instnictional Staff Services 

School Administration 
Less: Equipment for Scbool Administration 

Net School Administration 

Total General Fund Instruciional Expenditures 

Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures 

Certain Local Revenue Sources 
Local Taxation Revenue: 

Constitutional Ad Valorem Taxes 
Renewable Ad Valorem Tax 
Debt Service Ad Valorem Tax 
Up to 1% of Collections by the Sheriff on Taxes Other than School Taxes 
Sales and Use Taxes 

Total Local Taxatioo Revenue 

Local Earnings on Investment in Real Property: 
Eamlng.s from 16ih Section Property 
Earnings from Oilier Real Property 

Total Local Earnings on Investment in Real Property 

State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes: 
Revenue Slioring - Omstitutional Tax 
Revenue Sharing - Other Taxes 
Rcvcmic Sharing - Excess Portion 
Other Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 

Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 

Nonpublic Textbook Revenue 

Nonpublic Transportaticm Revenue 

7,885,962 

1,795,054 

4,055,860 

7,885,962 

1,795,054 

1.055,860 

See accompanying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 
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HRSTLLNE SCHOOLS, INC. Schedule 2 

Education Levels of Public School Staff 
As of October 1,2016 

Category 

Full-time Classroom Teachers Principals & Assistant Principals 

Category 
Certificated Uncertificated Cenificated Uncertificated 

Category Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Less than a Bachelor's Degree 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 
Bachelor's Degree 79 77% 76 82% 2 33% 6 55% 
Master's Degree 23 22% 14 15% 4 67% 5 45% 
Master's Degree t^30 1 1% 2 2% 0 0% 0 0% 
Specialist in Education 0 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 
Ph.D. orEd.D. 0 0% 1 1% 0 0% 0 0% 
Total 103 100% 93 100% 6 100% 11 100% 

Note: Due to rounding, certain percentage totals may not equal 100%. 

See accompanying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 
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FmSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 

Number and Type of Public Schools 
For the Vear Ended June 30, 2017 

Schedules 

T>pc Number 
Elementary: 4 
Middle/Jr. High 
Secondary 1 
Coinbination 

Total 5 

See accompanying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 
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FTRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. Schedule 4 

Experience of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers 
As of October 1, 2016 

0 - 1 Yr. 2 - 3 Yrs. 4 - 10 Yn. 11 - 14 Yrs. 15- 19 Yrs. 20 - 24 Yrs. 25- >TS. Total 
Assistant Principals 0 0 8 1 0 2 0 n 
Principals 0 0 3 2 1 0 0 6 

Classroom Teachers 65 40 70 13 3 3 2 196 
Total 65 40 81 16 4 5 2 213 

See accompanying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 

12 



FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. Schedule 5 

Public School Staff Data: Average Salaries 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

All Classroom Teachers 

Classroom Teachers 
Excluding ROTC and 

Rehired Retirees 

Average Classroom Teachers' 
Salary Excluding Extra 

Compensation $ 47,228 S 47,228 
Average Classroom Teachers' 

Salary Including Extra 
Compensation S 48,900 S 48,900 

iNumoeroi leacners run­
time Equivalents (F1 Es) used 

in Computation of Average 
Salaries 191.3 191.3 

Note: Figures reported include all sources of funding (i.e., federal, state, and local) but 
exclude employee benefits. Generally, retired teachers rehired to teach receive less 
compensation than non-retired teachers; some teachers may have been flagged as 
recehong reduced salaries (e.g., extended medical leave); and ROTC teachers usually 
receive more compensation because of a federal supplement. For these reasons, these 
teachers are excluded from the computation in the last column. This schedule excludes 
day-to-day substitutes, temporary employees, and any teachers on sabbatical leave 
during any part of the school year. 

See accompanying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. Schedule 6 

Class Size Characteristics 
As of October 1,2016 

School Type 

Class Size Range 

School Type 
1-20 21-26 27-33 34+ 

School Type Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number 
Elementary 12% 82 22% 147 60% 412 0% 3 
Elementary Ac tivity Classes 1% 6 2% 15 2% 17 0% 0 
Middle'Jr. High 
Middle/Jr. High Activity Classes 
High 81% 74 13% 12 0% 0 1% 1 
High Activity Classes 3% 3 0% 0 1% 1 0% 0 
Combination 
Combination Activity Classes 

Note: The Board of Elementary and Secondary Education has set specific limits on the maximum size of classes 
at various grade levels. The maximum enrollment in grades K-3 is 26 students and maximum enrollment in 
grades 4-12 is 33 students. These limits do not apply to activity classes such as ph>'sical education, chorus, band, 
and other classes without maximum enrollment standards. Therefore, these classes are included only as separate 
line items. 

See accompanying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Schedule 7 
Page 1 of 2 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

English Language Arts Mathematics District Achievement 
Level Results 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 

Grade 3 Students Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent 
Advanced 1% 0% 0% 2% 2% 3% 
Mastery 26% 23% 23% 28% 31% 29% 
Basic 27% 25% 30% 29% 38% 22% 
Approaching Basic 25% 29% 28% 23% 19% 26% 
Unsatisfactory 22% 23% 18% 17% 10% 19% 

Total 101% 100% 99% 99% 100% 99% 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

English Language Arts Mathematics District Achievement 
Level Results 2017 2016 1 2015 2017 2016 1 2015 

Grade 4 Students Percent Percent | Percent Percent Percent ) Percent 
Advanced 3% 1% 0% 1% 1% 0% 
Mastery 35% 27% 25% 43% 25% 16% 
Basic 36% 35% 41% 32% 34% 32% 
Approaching Basic 18% 27% 26% 17% 30% 32% 
Unsatisfactoy 8% 10% 8% 7% 9% 20% 

Total 100% 100%| 100% 100% 99% 100% 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

English Language Arts Mathematics District Achievement 
Level Results 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 

Grade 5 Students Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent 
Advanced 1% 1% 1% 2% 1% 0% 
Mastery 25% 23% 19% 19% 16% 12% 
Basic 42% 36% 33% 35% 40% 26% 
Approaching Basic 23% 27% 30% 29% 32% 44% 
Unsatisfactory 10% 13% 18% 15% 12% 18% 

Total 101% 100% 101% 100?''o 101% 100% 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

English Language Arts Mathematics District Achievement 
Level Results 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 

Grade 6 Students Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent 
Advanced 0% 2% 1% 0% 2% 1% 
Mastery 20% 23% 29% 19% 19% 17% 
Basic 32% 39% 44% 34% 2S% 34% 
Approaching Basic 36% 24% 14% 34% 34% 39% 
Unsatisfactory 11% 11% 12% 14% 17% 10% 

Total 99% 99% 100% 101% 100% 101% 

Note: Testing data for English and Mathematics in 2015 reflects suminar>* scores for the PARCC lesc. which 
replaced tJie LEAP in those categories. 

See accompanying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures 
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HRSTLINE SCHOOLS. INC. 

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) 
For the Year Ended June 30,2017 

Schedule 7 
Page 2 of 2 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

English Language Arts Mathematics District Achievement 
Level Results 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 

Grade 7 Students Percent Percent Percent Percent 1 Percent Percent 
Advanced 4% 2% 2% 0% 1% 1% 
Mastery 26% 26% 22% 22% 24% 20"/a 
Basic 29^''o 30% 42% 38% 37% 42% 
Approaching Basic 25% 27% 23% 30% 30% 27% 
Unsatisfactory 16% 14% 11% 9% S% 10% 

Total , 100% 99% 100% 99% ioo®/« 100% 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

English Language Arts Mathematics District Achievement 
Level Results 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 

Grades Students Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent 
Advanced 4% 4% 3% 2% 2% 3% 
Mastery 33% 42% 33% 30% 28% 24% 
Basic 32% 31% 35% 23% 28% 22% 
Approaching Basic 15% 14% 20% 25% 28% 30®/o 
Unsatisfactory 15% 8% 9% 20% 15% 21% 

Total 99% 99% 100% 100% 101% 100®/o 

Note: Testing data for English and Mathematics in 2015 reflects summary scores for the PARCC test, which 
replaced the LEAP in those categories. 

See accomparying independent accountants* report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC, Schedule 8 

The Graduate Exit Exam for the 21st Century 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

The Graduation Exit Examination is no longer administered. Therefore, this schedule is as applicable. 

See accompanying independent accoimtanLs' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 
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FmSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (ILEA?) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Schedule 9 
Page 1 of 2 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Science Social Studies District Achievement 
Level Results 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 

Grade 3 Students Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent 

Advanced 1% 1% 0% 2% N/A 0% 
Mastery 9% 6% 6% 13% N/A 4% 

Basic 40% 40% 37% 26% N/A 38% 
Approaching Basic 34% 37% 39% 31% N/A 30% 
Unsatisfactory 16% 16% 17% 28% N/A 27% 

Total 100% 100% 99% 100% N/A 99% 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Science Social Studies District Achievement 
Level Results 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 

Grade 4 Students Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent 
Advanced 1% 0% 0% 0% N/A 0% 
Mastery 6% 6% 2% 8% N/A 2% 

Basic 43% 38% 46% 24% N/A 41% 

Approaching Basic 37% 46% 36% 39% N/A 32% 
Unsatisfactory 13% 10% 16% 29% N/A 25% 

Total 100% 100% 100% 100% N/A 100% 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Science Social Studies District Achievement 
Level Results 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 

Grade 5 Students Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent 
Advanced 1% 0% 0% 1% N/A 0% 
Mastery 10% 6% 5% 11% N/A 10% 
Basic 37% 46% 33% 22% N/A 38% 
Approaching Basic 29% 32% 36% 30% N/A 28% 
Unsatisfactory 23% 17% 26% 37% N/A 24% 

Total 100% 101% 100% 101% N/A 100% 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Science Social Smdics District Achievement 
Level Results 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 

Grade 6 Students Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent 
Advanced 0% 1% 0% 1% N/A 5% 
Mastery 5% 8% 9% 8% N/A 11% 
Basic 41% 41% 39% 24% N/A 45% 
Approaching Basic 38% 32% 38% 35% N/A 29% 
Unsatisfactory 16% 19% 14% 32% N/A 10% 

Total 100% 101% 100% 100% N/A 100% 

Note 1: In 2015-2016. a Social Studies field lest svas administered in place of the operational Social Studies test 

Note 2: In 2015-2016, LEAP was administered for Science. 

See accompanying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 
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FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS, INC. 

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (iLEAP) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Schedule 9 
Page 2 of 2 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Science Social Studies District Achievement 
Level Results 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 

Grade 7 Students Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent 
Advanced 2% 0% 1% 4% N/A 5% 
Mastery 13% 15% 9% 13% N/A 15% 
Basic 38% 36% 42% 23% N/A 42% 
Approaching Basic 28% 27% 31% 25% N/A 24% 
Unsatisfactory 19% 21% 17% 36% N/A 15% 

Total 100% 99% 100% 101% N/A 101% 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Science Social Studies District Achievement 
Level Results 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 

Grade 8 Students Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent 
Advanced 1% 0% 0% 5% N/A 0% 
Mastery 7% 8% 7% 18% N/A 8% 
Basic 37% 37% 34% 31% N/A 44% 
Approaching Basic 33% 40% 31% 24% N/A 28% 
Unsatisfactory 22% 14% 28% 23% N/A 19% 

Total 100% 99% 100% 101% N/A 99% 

Note 1; In 2015-2016, a Social Studies field test was administered in place of the operational Social Studies test 

Note 2: In 2015-2016, LEAP was administered for Science. 

See accompanying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 
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FIRSTLTNr 
EDUCATION FOR LIFE 

April 30,2018 

Bruno & Tervalon, CPAs 
4298 Elysian Fields Ave 
New Orleans, La 70122 

FirstLine Charter School Network 
Board ofElernenlary and Secondary Educations agrced-Upon Procedures Management's Response 

6/30/2017 

Experience of Public Principal. Assistant Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers 
(SCHEDULE 41 

6, We obtained a list of full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by classification 
as of October 1, 2016 and as reported on the schedule and traced the same sample used in 
procedure 4 to the individual's personnel file and determined if the individual's experience 
was properly classified on the schedule. 

We noted that four (4) of the twenty five (25) full-time teachers tested the experience was 
improperly classified on the schedule 

Mana2ement*s Response 

Management has instituted a practice of asking the employee to state their years of experience 
and have added a dual review of newly hired employees resumes by the human resources staff 
to confirm the employee years of experience. 

Class Size Characteristics: (Schedule 61 

9. We obtained a list of classes by school type and class size as reported on the schedule. We 
then traced a random sample of 10 classes to the October 1, 2016 roll books for those 
classes and determined if the class was properly classified on the schedule. 

FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS ~ EDUCATION FOR LIFE 
P.O. Box 791729, New Orleans, LA 70179-1729 j (504) 267-9038 | www.ftrstllneschooIs.org 



HRmiNC^/^SCHOOLS 
EDUCATION FOR UFE 

FirstLiae did nol pfovide us with roil boohs for three (3) of the ten (10) tested classes. 
Therefore, wc could nol Irace tiiese classes to the October 1,2016 roll books and also we 
could not determine of the classes were properly classified on the schedule. 

Manasement's Resvonse 

Management now requests an image of the student information database (PowerSchool) as of 
October I each year the image is an exacl copy of the classes reported to the Louisiana 
Department of Education as of that date. 

Please let me know if you have any questions regarding the Management Responses above. I can 
be reached via email atjaUman@ftrslllneschooIs.org or 504-267-9038. 

Sincerely, 

Jay Altman 
Chief Executive Officer 

FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS - EDUCATION FOR LIFE 
P.O. Box 791729, New Orleans, LA 70179-17291 (504) 267-9038 | www.firstlineschools.org 
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ON 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of Directors of FirstLine Schools, Inc. 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by FirstLine 
Schools, Inc. (FirstLine) and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and 
compliance areas identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the 
fiscal period July 1. 2016 throu^ June 30, 2017. FirstLine's management is responsible for 
those control and compliance areas identified in the SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was perfonned in accordance with attestation 
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable 
standards of Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the 
responsibility of the specified users of the report. Consequently, we make no representation 
regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described on pages 2 to 19 either for the purpose for 
which this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

Fihl Tb AVfc'Ni.if-
ne.vvmLANS. i.Arai:'::; 
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PRcSlOtNl blRr.r": 
JACKSON, .'vis 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

PROCEDURES AND FINDINGS 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

I. We obtained FirstLine's written policies and procedures to determine whether the policies 
and procedures address each of the following financial/business functions, as applicable: 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

No exceptions were noted except that FirstLine's written budgeting policies and 
procedures do not address the process for amending the budget 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the Hnding identified above is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for 
the year ended June 30,2017, 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases aie initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and 
purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with tlie public bid law; and (5) 
documentation required to be maintamed for all bids and price quotes. 

No exceptions were noted, 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

No exceptions were noted 

d) Receipts, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. 

No exceptions were noted. 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payioll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving 
lime and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked. 

No exceptions were noted. 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard tenns 
and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

JVe noted the contracting policy does not address (1) types of services requiring written 
contracts and (2) legal review. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identiOed above is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agrecd-Upon Procedures Management's Response for 
the year ended June 30,2017. 

g) Credit Cards, including (I) how cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, 
(3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers, and (5) monitoring card usage. 

No exceptions were noted. 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (I) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

No exceptions were noted. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-
1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor 
possible ethics violations, and (4) requirement that ail employees, including elected 
officials, annually attest through signature verification that they have read the entity's 
ethics policy. 

Ethics requirements are not applicable to nonprofits. 

j) Debt Seivice, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) EMMA reporting requirements, 
(3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Debt requirements are not applicable to nonprofits. 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

Board (or Finance Committee, if avDlicable) 

2. We obtained and reviewed the Board/Finance Committee minutes for the fiscal period to 
determine whether; 

a) the Board met (with a quorum) at least monthly, or on a frequency in accordance with the 
Board*s enabling legislation, charter, or other equivalent document. 

No exceptions were noted, 

b) the Board minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on 
FirstLine's funds, and if the budget-to-actual comparisons showed that management was 
deficit spending during the fiscal period, there is a formal/written plan to eliminate the 
deficit spending for those entities with a fund balance deficit. If there is a formal/written 
plan, report whether the meeting minutes for at least one board meeting during the fiscal 
period reflect that the board is monitoring the plan. 

We noted that the Board minutes reviewed during the fiscal year did not include 
monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on FirstLine's funds. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for 
the year ended June 30,2017. 

c) the minutes referenced or included non-budgetary financial information (e.g. approval of 
contracts and disbursements) for at least one meeting during the fiscal period. 

No exceptions were noted. 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. We obtained a listing of client bank accounts from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. 

No exceptions were noted. 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

4. From the listing provided by management, we selected all seven (7) of FirstLine's bank 
accounts and obtained bank statements and reconciliations for all montlis in the fiscal penod 
to determine whether: 

a) Bank reconciliations have been prepared; 

No exceptions were noted 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management or a board member 
(with no involvement in the transactions associated with tlie bank account) have reviewed 
each bank reconciliation; 

We noted that all selected bank reconciliations did not include evidence that a member 
of management or a board member had reviewed the bank reconciliations. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for 
the year ended June 30,2017. 

c) If applicable, management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling 
items that have been outstanding for more than 6 months as of the end of the fiscal 
period. 

We noted that one (1) of the seven (7) selected bank reconciliations had reconciling 
items greater than six (6) months at the end of the fiscal period with no documentation 
reflecting that the items had been researched. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for 
the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Cash Collections 

5. We obtained a listing of casWcheck/money order (cash) collection locations and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. 

No exceptions were noted. 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

6. From the listing provided by management, we selected all of FirstLine's cash collection 
locations and: 

a) Obtained existing written documentation (e.g. insurance policy, policy manual, job 
description) to determine whether each person responsible for collecting cash is (1) 
bonded, (2) not responsible for depositing the cash in the bank, recording the related 
transaction, or reconciling the related bank account (report if there are compensating 
controls performed by an outside party), and (3) not required to share the same cash 
register or drawer with another employee. 

No exceptions were noted, 

b) Obtained existing written documentation (e.g. sequentially numbered receipts, system 
report, reconciliation worksheets, policy manual) to determine whether FirstLine has a 
fonnal process to reconcile cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, by a person who is not 
responsible for cash collections in the cash collection location selected. 

No exceptions were noted, 

c) Selected the highest (dollar) week of cash collections from the general ledger or other 
accounting records during the fiscal period and: 

1) Using entity collection documentation, deposit slips, and bank statements, traced 
daily collections to the deposit date on the corresponding bank statement to 
determine whether the deposits were made within one day of collection. 

We noted that for the thirty-nine (39) deposits tested, two (2) of the deposits were 
made within one day of collection. However, we noted it is FirstLine's policy to 
make deposits within two (2) days. Majority of the funds collected were not 
deposited within their policy's guidelines, we noted the following time gaps 
between collection and deposit: Green Student Activity funds were collected by 
teachers between September 22, 2016 and June 28, 2017 and deposited on June 
28, 2017; Langston Hughes funds were collected between April 28, 2017 and May 
7, 2017 and deposited on May 18, 2017; Clark funds were collected on February 2, 
2017 and deposited on February 9, 2017; Ashe funds were collected bet^veen 
August 8, 2016 and September 28, 2016 and deposited on October 5, 2016, and the 
Network funds were collected April 10, 2017 and April 18, 2017 and deposited on 
April 19, 2017, 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate 
letter identified as the Statewide Agreed-Lpon Procedures Management's 
Response for the year ended June 30,2017. 

2) Using sequentially numbered receipts, system reports, or other related collection 
documentation, verified that daily cash collections are completely supported by 
documentation. 

fVe noted that twenty-five (25) of tJiirty-nine (39) cash collections were not 
completely supported by documentation. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate 
letter identified as the Statewide Agrced-Upon Procedures Management's 
Response for the year ended June 30,2017, 

7. We obtained existing written documentation (e.g. policy manual, written procedure) to 
determine w^hether FirstLine has a process specifically defined (identified as such by 
FirstLine) to determine completeness of all collections, including electronic transfers, for 
each revenue source and agency fund additions (e.g. periodic confirmation with outside 
parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket 
number sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation) by a person who is not 
responsible for collections. 

We noted that there is no written policy that specifically addresses how FirstLine 
determines the completeness of all collections by a person who is not responsible for 
collections. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding Identified above Is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for the 
year ended June 30, 2017. 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

Disbursements - General (exdudiue credit card purchases or payments) 

8. We obtained FirstLiiie's consolidated check register for tlie year ended June 30, 2017 and 
filtered for purchases only. We obtained management's representation that the consolidated 
check register population was complete. 

No exceptions were noted, 

9. Using the disbursement population from #8 above, we randomly selected 25 disbursements, 
excluding credit card/debit card/fuel card/P-card purchases or payments. We obtained 
supporting documentation (e.g. purchase requisitions, system screens/logs) for each 
transaction to detennine whether: 

a) Purchases were initiated using a requisition/purchase order system or an equivalent 
electronic system that separates initiation from approval functions in the same manner as 
a requisition/purchase order system. 

We noted twelve (12) of the twenty-five (25) purchases tested were not initiated using a 
purchase requisition or purchase order that separates initiation from approval 
functions in the same manner as a requisition/purchase order system. 

Managements Response 

FirstLinc's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agrecd-Upon Procedures Management's Response for 
the year ended June 30, 2017. 

b) Purchase orders, or an electronic equivalent, were approved by a person who did not 
initiate the purchase. 

We noted twelve (12) of the Dventy-five (25) disbursements tested were not 
accompanied by a purchase order. The remaining ten (10) purchases had purchase 
orders that were approved by someone other than the one yvho initiated the purchase. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for 
the year ended June 30,2017. 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

c) Payments for purchases were not processed without (1) an approved requisition and/or 
purchase order, or electronic equivalent; (2) a receiving report showing receipt of goods 
purchased, or electronic equivalent; and (3) an approved invoice. 

We noted twelve (12) of the twenty-five (25) items tested were processed without an 
approved requisition or purchase order and twelve (12) of Uventy-five (25) items were 
processed without a receiving report or packing slip. All purchases were supported by 
an approved invoice. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding IdentiHed above is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for 
the year ended June 30,2017. 

10. We reviewed FirstLine's documentation (e.g. electronic system control documentation, 
policy manual, written procedure) to determine whetlier the person responsible for processing 
payments is proliibited from adding vendors to FirstLine's purchasing/disbursement system. 

FirstLine does not have a written policy prohibiting the person responsible for processing 
payments from adding vendors to the purchasing/disbursement system. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above Is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for the 
year ended June 30,2017, 

11. We reviewed FirstLine's documentation (e.g. electronic system control documentation, 
policy manual, written procedure) to detenuine whether the persons with signatory authority 
or who make the final authorization for disbursements have no responsibility for initiating or 
recording purchases. 

No exceptions were noted. 

12. We inquired of management and obser\^ed the supply of unused checks to determine whether 
unused checks are maintained in a locked location, with access restricted to those persons 
tliat do not have signatory authority. 

No exceptions were noted. 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

13. We inquired of tlie individual with a signature stamp whetlier his or her signature is 
maintained under his or her control or is used only with his or her knowledge and consent. 
We also inquired whether signed checks are likewise maintained under the control of the 
signer or authorized user until mailed. 

No exceptions were notetL 

Credit Cards 

14. We obtained from management a listing of all active credit cards, including the card numbers 
and the names of the persons who maintained possession of tlie cards and we obtained 
management's representation that the listing is complete. 

No exceptions were noted, 

15. Using the listing prepared by management, we randomly selected two (2) of the six (6) cards 
that were used during the fiscal period and obtained the monthly statements. We selected the 
monthly statement with tlie largest dollar activity for each card to determine whether: 

a) there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting 
documentation was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other tlian the 
authorized card holder. 

JVe noted there was no written indication that statements were reviewed and approved. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for 
the year ended June 30, 2017. 

b) finance charges and/'or late fees were assessed on the selected statements. 

No exceptions were noted. 

10 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTLNUED) 

16. Using the monthly statements selected under #15 above, we obtained supporting 
documentation for all transactions for each of the two cards selected. 

a) We reviewed each transaction to determine whether the transaction is supported by: 

1) An original itemized receipt (i.e., identifies precisely what was purchased) 

We noted one hundred forty-three (143) of the eight hundred forty-six (846) 
charges reviewed were not supported by an itemized receipt 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate 
letter identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's 
Response for the year ended June 30,2017. 

2) Documentation of the business/public purpose. For meal charges, there should also 
be documentation of the individuals participating. 

We noted one hundred sixty-three (163) of the eight hundred forty-six (846) 
charges reviewed did not have documentation of the business purpose. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate 
letter identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's 
Response for the year ended June 30,2017. 

3) Other documentation that may be required by written policy (e.g., purchase order, 
written authorization.) 

We noted two hundred flfty-ihree (253) of the eight hundred forty-six (846) 
charges reviewed did not have other documentation required by FirstLine's 
policies (Le.f purchase orders written pre-authorization). 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate 
letter identified as the Statewide Agreed-Lpon Procedures Management's 
Response for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

11 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

b) For each transaction, we reviewed the transaction's detail (nature of purchase, dollar 
amount of purchase, supporting documentation) for compliance with FirstLine's written 
purchasing/disbursement policies and the Louisiana Public Bid Law (i.e. transaction is a 
large or recurring purchase requiring the solicitation of bids or quotes). 

The exceptions noted in procedure step §J6a(l) above were not in compliance with 
FirstLine*s written purchasing policies. No exceptions were noted with regard to 
compliance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law, 

c) For each transaction, we compared FirstLine's documentation of the business/public 
purpose to the requirements of Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution, which 
prohibits the loan, pledge, or donation of funds, credit, property, or things of value, and 
report any exceptions (e.g. cash advances or non-business purchases, regardless whether 
they are reimbursed). 

The exceptions noted in procedure step §16a(2) above did not have documentation of 
the business purpose, therefore \ve were unable to determine if the purchases met the 
requirements of Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

Travel and Expense Reimbursement 

17. We obtained the consolidated check register for tlie year ended June 30,2017 and filtered for 
travel reimbursements. We obtained management's representation that the consolidated 
check register population is complete. 

No exceptions were noted. 

18. We obtained FirstLine's written policies related to travel and expense reimbursements and 
compared the amounts in tlie policies to the per diem and mileage rates established by the 
U.S. General Services Administration (w^\'w.gsa.gov) to determine whether tliere are any 
amounts that exceed GSA rates. 

FirslLine uses the per diem and mileage rates established by the State of Louisiana. 

19. Using the transactions fi'om #17 above, we selected the three persons who incuired the most 
travel costs during the fiscal period. We obtained the expense reimbursement reports or 
prepaid expense documentation of each selected person, including the supporting 
documentation, and chose the largest travel expense for each person to review in detail. For 
each of the three travel expenses selected: 

12 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

a) We compared expense documentation to written policies to detennine whether each 
expense was reimbursed or prepaid in accordance with written policy (e.g., rates 
established for meals, mileage, lodging). 

As noted above, FirstLine follows the policy of the State of Louisiana with respect to 
travel and expense reimbursements. However, we noted one (1) of the three (3) 
reimbursements tested, where the hotel charge exceeded the State per diem rate for 
lodging. The State lodging rate for Philadelphia, PA is $134 per night and the actual 
reimbursement rate iviis $249per night 

Manaeemcnt*s Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for 
the year ended June 30, 2017. 

b) We detemiined whether each expense is supported by: 

1) An original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

We noted one (I) of three (3) reimbursements was not supported by an original 
itemized receipt 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate 
letter identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's 
Response for the year ended June 30, 2017, 

2) Documentation of the business/public purpose (Note: For meal charges, tliere should 
also be documentation of the individuals participating). 

We noted in two (2) of three (3) reimbursements tested, there were no 
documentation of the business purpose. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate 
letter identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's 
Response for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

13 



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

3) Other documentation as may be required by written policy (e.g., autliorization for 
travel, conference brochure, certificate of attendance). 

fVe noted in two (2) of three (3) reimbursements tested, there were no pre-
authorization forms, as required by FirstLme*s written policy. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate 
letter identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's 
Response for the year ended June 30,2017. 

c) We compaied FirstLine's documentation of the business/public puipose to the 
requirements of Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution, which prohibits the 
loan, pledge, or donation of fimds, credit, property, or things of value. 

No exceptions were noted, 

d) We determined whether each expense and related documentation was reviewed and 
approved, in writing, by someone other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

No exceptions were noted. 

Contracts 

20. We obtained a listing of all contracts in effect during the fiscal period and obtained the 
consolidated check register for the year ended June 30, 2017 and filtered for contract 
payments. We obtained management's representation that the consolidated check register 
population is complete. 

No exceptions were noted, 

21. Using the listing above, we selected the five contract vendors that were paid the most money 
during the fiscal period, including the transpoilation contract and excluding purchases on 
state contract and payments to the practitioner. We obtained the related contracts and paid 
invoices and: 

a) We determined whether there is a fonnai/written contract that supports the ser\dces 
arrangement and the amount paid. 

No exceptions were noted. 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

b) We compared each contract's detail to the Louisiana Public Bid Law or Procurement 
Code to detennine whether each contract is subject to tlie Louisiana Public Bid Law or 
Procurement Code and: 

1) If yes, we obtained and compared supporting contract documentation to legal 
requirements to determine whether FirstLine complied with all legal requirements 
(e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertisement, selected lowest bidder) 

No exceptions were noted, 

2) If no, we obtained supporting contract documentation to detennine whether 
FirstLine solicited quotes as a best practice. 

We noted that for one (1) of the five (5) contracts reviewed solicited quotes were 
not obtained as a best practice. 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate 
letter identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's 
Response for the year ended June 30,2017. 

c) We determined whether the contract was amended, and if so, we detemiined whether the 
original contract terms contemplated or provided for such an amendment 

None of the contracts reviewed were amended; therefore, this procedure is not 
applicable. 

d) We selected the largest payment from each of the five contracts, obtained the supporting 
invoice, and compared the invoice to the contract terms, to detennine whether the invoice 
and related payment complied with the terms and conditions of the contract. 

No exceptions were noted. 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

e) We obtained and reviewed contract documentation and board minutes to detennine 
whether there is documentation of board approval, if required by policy or law (e.g. 
Lawrason Act or Home Rule Charter). 

fVe noted no evidence in the board minntes that five (5) of the five (5) contracts 
reviewed were approved by the Board, as required by FirstLine^s policy for contracts 
greater than $150,000. 

Management's Response 

FirstLinc's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for 
the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Payroll and Personnel 

22. We obtained a listing of employees (and elected officials, if applicable) with their related 
salaries. We randomly selected the five employees, obtained their personnel files, and: 
a) Reviewed compensation paid to each employee during the fiscal period to determine 

whether payments were made in strict accordance with tlie terms and conditions of the 
employment contract or pay rate structure. 

No exceptions were noted. 

b) Reviewed changes made to hourly pay rates/salaries during the fiscal period to determine 
whether those changes were approved in writing and in accordance with written policy. 

No exceptions were noted. 

23. We obtained attendance and leave records and randomly selected one pay period in wliich 
leave was taken by at least one employee (January 26, 2017 to February 11, 2017). Within 
that pay period, we randomly selected 25 employees to determine whether: 

a) all selected employees/ofTicials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatory). 

No exceptions were noted. 

b) there is written documentation that super\dsors approved, electronically or in writing, the 
attendance and leave of the selected employees. 

We noted that there was no written documentation that supervisors approved, 
electronically or in writing, the attendance and leave of the selected employees. 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for 
the year ended June 30,2017. 

c) there is written documentation that FirstLine maintained written leave records (e.g., 
hours earned, hours used, and balance available) on those selected employees that cam 
leave. 

No exceptions were noted. 

24. We obtained from management a list of those employees/officials that terminated during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete. We selected the two 
largest termination payments (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory time) made during the fiscal 
period and obtained tlie personnel files for the two employees. We reviewed tlie tennination 
payments to determine whether they were made in strict accordance with policy and/or 
contract and approved by management. 

No exceptions were noted. 

25. We obtained supporting documentation (e.g. cancelled checks, EFT documentation) relating 
to payroll taxes and retirement contributions during the fiscal period to determine whether 
the employee and employer portions of payroll taxes and retirement contributions, as well as 
the required reporting forms, were submitted to the applicable agencies by the required 
deadlines. 

No exceptions were noted. 

Ethics 

26. Using the five randomly selected employees from procedure #22 under "Payroll and 
Personnel" above, we obtained ethics compliance documentation from management to 
detennine whether FirstLine maintained documentation to demonstrate that required ethics 
training was completed. We also reviewed tlie employee tiles for the employees selected to 
detennine whether there was a signed verification of having read tlie ethics policy included in 
the file. 

This procedure is not applicable. 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNT.\NTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

27. We inquired of management whether any alleged ethics violations were reported to 
FirstLine during the fiscal period and, if applicable, reviewed documentation demonstrating 
that management investigated alleged etliics violations, the corrective actions taken, and 
whether management's actions complied with FirstLine's ethics policy. 

This procedure is not applicable* 

Debt Service 

28. If debt was issued during the fiscal period, we obtained supporting documentation from 
FirstLine to determine whether State Bond Commission approval was obtained. 

This procedure is not applicable. 

29. If FirstLine had outstanding debt during the fiscal period, we obtained supporting 
documentation from FirstLine and report whether FirstLine made scheduled debt service 
payments and maintained debt reserves, as required by debt covenants. 

This procedure is not applicable. 

30. If FirstLine had tax millages relating to debt service, we obtained supporting documentation 
to determine whether millage collections exceeded debt service payments by more than 10% 
during the fiscal period. 

This procedure is not applicable. 

Other 

31. We inquired of management whether FirstLine had any misappropriations of public funds or 
assets. If so, we obtained and reviewed supporting documentation to detennine whether 
FirstLine reported the misappropriation to the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and the District 
Attorney of Orleans Parish. 

No misappropriations ofpublic funds or assets were identified during the period. 

32. We observed FlrstLine's premises and website to detennine whether FirstLine posted tlie 
notice required by R.S. 24:523.1. 

We noted the noticed posted on FirstLine's premises but was not posted on their 
website. 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON 

APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
(CONTINUED) 

Management's Response 

FirstLine's response to the finding identified above is described in a separate letter 
identified as the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response for the 
year ended June 30,2017. 

33. If the practitioner observes or otherwise identifies any exceptions regarding management's 
representations in the procedures above, report the nature of each exception. 

No exceptions were noted. 

We were not engaged to, and did not, perform an examination, the objective of which would be 
the expression of an opinion on management's assertions, respectively, on those control and 
compliance areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or 
conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our 
attention that would have been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe he scope of testing performed on those control 
and compliance areas identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. Under Lx)uisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative 
Auditor as a public document. 

BRUNO & TERVALON LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

April 30,2018 

jBruno& Tervalon „ 
l^j^Certified Public Accountants 
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April 30,2018 

Bruno &Tervalon, CPAs 
4298 Elysian Fields Ave 
New Orleans, La 70122 

FirstLine Charter School Network 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Management's Response 

6/30/2017 

Written Policies and Procedures 
1. We obtained the entity's written policies and procedures and reporl whether those written 

policies and procedures address each of the following financial/business functions: 

• No exceptions were noted except that FirstLine written budgeting policies and 
procedures do not address the process for amending the budget 

Management's Response 

FirstLine Charter School Network (FLS) will update its policies to include a 
procedure for budget amendments requiring approval from the Board of Directors 
through its Finance Committee 

• We noted that the poUcy did not address (1) types of service? requiring written 
contracts and (2) Legal review 

Manaecment's Response 

Management vvill update the policy to include types of services requiring written 
contracts. Firstline does not have a Legal -Department; however, all contracts are 
reviewed by the HR Director who holds a law degree and serves as in-house 
counsel. FLS will update its policies to reflect this process. 

2. Board for Finance Committee, if Applicable) 

• IVe noted that the Board minutes reviews during the fiscal year did not include 
monthly budget-to^ciual comparisons on FirstLine *s funds, 

Manaeement's Response 

Management has corrected this process and is now providing budget to actual to the 
Finance Committee at every meeting. 

FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS - EDUCATION FOR LIFE 
300 N. Broad Street Suite 207, New Orleans, LA 70119 j (504) 267-9038 | www.firstlineschools.org 
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3, Bank Reconciliations 

• }Ve noted that all selected bank reconciliations did not include evidence that a 
member of management or a board member had reviewed the bank reconciliations 

Managements Response 

Bank Reconciliations are being reviewed, but not signed by the reviewer. Management has 
corrected this process. The approver is required to sign and date all bank reconciliations. 
Additionally, the Finance Committee will now review the bank reconciliations as part of 
each meeting. 

• We noted that one of the four selected bank reconciliations had reconciJing items 
greater than 6 months at tfte end of the fiscal period with no documentation 
reflecting that the items had been researched. 

Managements Response 

Management will ensure tliat all outstanding checks are researched and any that are 
approaching 6 months are reported to the State of Louisiana. 

4. Cash Collections 

• We noted that for the thiiiy~nine39) deposits tested, ttvo (2) of the deposits were 
made within one day of collection. However, we noted it is FirstLine's policy to 
make deposits within two (2) days. The majority of the funds collected were not 
deposited wit/tin their policy's guidelineiL 

Management is working to correct this process. FLS has started using electronic deposits 
with the use of a check scanner for all checks and currently revising procedures around 
cash collections to streamline the current process. 

We noted that 25 of the thirty-nine39) deposits were not completely supported by 
documentation 

Management has implemented procedures for preparing deposits that include affixing 
copies of ail pertinent information and documentation to the finance department's deposits 
files. 

• We noted that there is no written policy that specifically addresses how FirstLine 
determines the completeness of all collections by a person who is not responsible 
for collections 

FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS - EDUCATION FOR LIFE 
300 N. Broad Street Suite 207, New Orleans, LA 70119 | (504) 267-9038 j www.firstlineschool5.org 



& FIRSTUNE#'/<^5CH00LS 
EDUCAnON FOR UFE 

Management's Response 

Management will update cash collections policy to address completeness of deposits 

5. Disbursements 
We obtained the entity's disbursements for the fiscal period and randomly selected 25 
disbursements and tested for the following items: 

a. Purchases were initiated using a requisition/purchase order system or an 
equivalent eleclionic system that separates initiation from approval functions 
in the same manner as a requisition/purchase order system. 

• We noted (J 2) of twenty-five (25) purchases were not initiated using a purchase 
requisition to purchase order that separates initiation form approval functions 

Monaoemenr^^ flespon^e 

Management will ensure thatall purchases are initiated using a requisition or check 
request prior to processing any orders. 

b. Purchase orders, or an electronic equivalent, were approved by a person who 
did not initiate the purchase. 

• }Ve noted (12) of tiventyfive (25) purchases did not had tw indication of approval. 

Managements flesponse 

Management will ensure that all purchases will have proof the proper approval on file prior 
to proceeding with the purchase and that the person requesting is not the approver. 

c. Payments for purchases were not processed without (1) an approved requisition 
and/or purchase order, or electronic equivalent; (2) a receiving report showing 
receipt of goods purchased, or electronic equivalent' and (3) an approved invoice. 

• We noted (12) of twenty five (25) purchases were processed wiihout approval and 
12 of 25 were processed with a receiving report. 

Managements Resoonse 
Management will ensure thatall purchases are approved prior to processing the request 
and those purchases are properly received in the purchasing system or received with a 
valid signature acknowledging receipt 

FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS - EDUCATION FOR LIFE 

300 N. Broad Street Suite 207, New Orleans, LA 70119 j (504) 267-9038 | www.firstlineschools.org 
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6. We obtained from management a listing of all active ciedit card used during the fiscal ijciiod 
and obtained monthly statements with the largest dollar activity to detemilne if the statement 
and supporting documentation was reviewed and approved in writing by someone other than 
the aulJtorized card holder. 

We noted no written indication that statements are revieyved and approved 

Credit Card statements are reviewed in accounting and are recorded accordingly. During 
this reconciliation process, all purchases are reviewed and all backup documentation for 
every purchase is placed with the credit statement for proof of purchase, approval and 
receipt. 

• We noted thai one hundred forty-three 143 of the 846 charges were not supported 
by an itemized receipt 

A/qnflgemgf?r.y figjppngg 

Management will ensure that ail purchases are supported by an itemized receipt 

• We noted 163 of the 846 charges did not have documentation of the business 
purpose. 

Manasemeiu's Response 

Purchases were reviewed and Management has determined that these purchases were for a 
business purpose. Management is revising its procedures to ensure that all purchases have 
proper documentation of the business purpose. 

• We noted 253 of the 846 charges reviewed did not have other documentation 
required by FirstLine *spolicies. 

Manaeemenfs Response 
Management will ensure that pre-approval for all credit card usage is documented and 
includes reason for request and supervisor signature 

7, We obtained a listing of all travel and related expense reimbui-sements by three persons who 
incurred the most travel costs during tiie fiscal period. We obtained the expense 
reimbursements and chose the largest travel expense for each person to review in detail. 

FtRSTLINE SCHOOLS - EDUCATION FOR LIFE 
300 N. Broad Street Suite 207. New Orleans. LA 70119 | (504) 267-9038 | www.firstline5chools.org 
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a. }Ve mted one (I) of three(3) reimbursements tested, n-Aerc the hotel charge 
exceeded the State per diem rate for lodging. The State lodging rate for 
Philadelphia, PA is $]34per night and the actual reimbursement rate was $249per 
night 

Management's Resnonse 
Management has determined that the hotel stay was at the specified conference 
hotel and that there was not a cheaper rate in the area that would allow the 
employee to attend the conference within reasonable commuting time frame. 

b. Reimbursement is supported by documentalion. 
• We noted One (1) of three (3) lacked documentation to support expense 

reimbursement 

Management's Response 
Management currently requires documentation for all expense reimbursements. 
We considered the back-up submitted as sufficient for the reimbursement; 
however Management will now require staff to keep itemized receipts. 

• We noted in (2) two of three (3) reimbnrsemenVi tested, there were no pre-
authorization forms, as required by Fustline written policy. 

Management's Response 

Management will ensure that pre-authorization forms are obtained and approved 
prior to any travel or reimbursements are processed in accordance with our policy. 

Contracts 

8. We obtained supporting conti-act documentation to detennine whether FirstLine solicited 
quotes as a best practice 

• We noted thai for (1) of the five (5) contracts reviewed, solicited quotes were not 
obtained as a i}est practice, 

Man aaem en t's Response 

Management will ensure that we will follow the best practices of soliciting 3 quotes where 
ever possible. If this is not possible, management will document such reasons. 

FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS - EDUCATION FOR LIFE 
300 N. Broad Street Suite 207, New Orleans, LA 70119 j (504) 267-9038 | www.firstnneschools.Drg 
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c. We obtained and reviewed contract documentation and board minutes to determine 
whether there is documentation of board approval, if required by policy or law 

• We noted no evidence in the board minutes that five (5) of the five (5) contracts 
revietved uvre approved by the Board, as required by Firstline's policy for 
contracts greater than $150,000. 

Mmagmem's toppflgg 
Management has implemented procedures where the board regularly reviews a list 
of all executed contracts and all contracts over $150,000 are submitted to the board 
for prior approval. 

PayrpU apd Personnel 

9. We obtained attendance and leave records and randomly selected one pay period in which 
leave was taken by at least one employee within that pay period. We randomly selected 25 
employees to determine whether 

b) there is written documentation that supervisors approved, electronically or in 
writing the attendance and leave of the selected employees 

• We noted that there was no written documentation thai supervisors approved 
electronically or in writing, the attendance and leave of the selected employees 

Management will Implement a time and attendance system that will allow for 
electronic approval of attendance and leave. 

Other 

10. Observe and report whethei- the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice 
required by R.S. 24:523.1. This notice coucems the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, 
waste, or abuse of public funds. 

• We noted the notice of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse ofpublic funds is 
not listed on the client's website. 

Management's Response 

Management will post the required notice of misappropriation, fraud, waste or 
abuse of public funds on the website. The notice is currently posted on our physical 
premises. 

FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS - EDUCATION FOR LIFE 
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Please let me know if you have any questions regarding the Management Responses above. 
I can be reached via email at jaltman@firstlineschools.org or 504-267-9038. 

Sincerely, 

(ay Altman 
CEO 

FIRSTLINE SCHOOLS - EDUCATION FOR LIFE 
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